

Constitution of Cherishing Sidmouth Cemeteries Formed in Nov 2023

As a sub-group or project of the Vision Group for Sidmouth, Cherishing Sidmouth Cemeteries (CSC) wishes to adopt the Constitution of the Vision Group for Sidmouth as allowed under Section 4 part c of that Constitution (attached). Namely that

'c) Sub-groups may choose to adopt the Constitution of the VGS by making a simple statement containing the following points:

i) Their name;

ii) That they replace section 2 a) with a statement of their own particular Aims;

iii) That every reference to the VGS in this Constitution shall be understood to also apply to the name of their subgroup, saving only those referring to specific inclusions, provisions or arrangements clearly pertaining only to an over-group;

iv) That references to the Co-ordination Group shall not apply;

Therefore CSC makes the following statements

This Constitution applies to Cherishing Sidmouth Cemeteries, also known as CSC.

We hereby adopt the Constitution of the Vision Group of 7th June 2019, annexed hereto, saving only that :

1) The Aims of the VGS are replaced with our Aims as follow :-

For Sidmouth Cemetery

a) To respect those who lie in the Cemetery, relatives who visit, and members of the general public who pass through.

b) To foster an environment in which wildlife can flourish and biodiversity is improved.

c) To undertake a programme of simple improvements and agree an ongoing plan.

d) To set the Cemetery in its geographical context and improve connectivity.

e) To set the Cemetery in its historical context.

For other burial places within the Sid Valley, to expand CSC's reach and aim beyond Sidmouth Cemetery if and when appropriate and requested.

These Aims to be achieved by

a) providing an attractive public open space to create a pleasant experience, and by ensuring, as much as is possible, that all those who are buried there can be easily identified and found.

b) valuing the location of Sidmouth Cemetery at the centre of an important green east-west corridor, which underscores the need to provide suitable habitat and appropriate planting.

c) working with EDDC as both landowner and the authority responsible for maintenance. The forward plan should emphasise low maintenance costs, sustainability and environmental considerations, whilst guaranteeing the provisions of a) above. The programme should include an overhaul/consideration of all elements of public realm within Sidmouth Cemetery.

d) acknowledging that the site now lies right in the middle of the Sidmouth built-up area and forms part of a 'green link' that connects The Byes via the Cemetery and The Knapp to Station Road, and beyond to The Manor Park and open countryside. The juxtaposition of these green open spaces allows for improvements in

connectivity for both walkers and nature. Links for humans are poorly signed and nature would benefit from suitable associated planting when upgrading signage.

e) documenting its history and making it easily available to the public. The original part of the Cemetery was consecrated in December 1878, so the 150th anniversary is five years away. In the late nineteenth century, the concept of Garden Cemeteries was popular, and Sidmouth's new cemetery may well have been an example. The idea of Garden Cemeteries is to create a place that properly respects those who have passed away and is also an attractive public open space that can be enjoyed and appreciated while also expanding knowledge of flora; and educating on artistic 'taste'. Given Sidmouth's longstanding gardening/horticultural heritage, it seems appropriate to revive some aspects of this theme.

f) maintaining communication with other groups concerned with the management of Sid Valley burial grounds so that efforts can be coordinated.

2) Every reference to the VGS in this Constitution shall be understood to also apply to Cherishing Sidmouth Cemeteries, saving only those referring to specific inclusions, provisions or arrangements clearly pertaining only to an over-group.

3) References to the Coordination Group shall not apply to CSC. The Coordination Group function, where applicable, will be taken over by a Core Group made up of CSC members selected by the same rules as the VGS Coordination Group.

4) Management

The management of the group shall be be responsibility of VGS Officers and a Core Group of members of CSC.

5) Resources for CSC shall be managed by the VGS on their behalf. The VGS Treasurer shall be responsible for holding safe and keeping a record of any monies granted to or raised on behalf of CSC and making payments in their name.

Adoption of Constitution

This CSC Constitution was adopted on the 1st January 2024. By vote of the members of the group at that time.

Signed

VGS Secretary J. Woodward 

And on behalf of CSC by Core Group member

Amanda O'Carroll 

ANNEX TO THE CSC CONSTITUTION

Constitution of The Vision Group for Sidmouth, formed in 2005, amended in May 2019, adopted 7th June 2019

1) Type of Association

The VGS is a voluntary, cooperative, unincorporated, not-for-profit, secular, non-party association.

2) The aims and principles of The Vision Group for Sidmouth (VGS)

a) The aims of the VGS are

- i) to stimulate informed debate;
- ii) to provide a supportive structure where people can develop projects of a high quality;
- iii) to develop creative ideas about how to build the future.

The VGS exists to provide a means for residents of the Sid Valley to start and to continue community related projects and activities that fit within the aims and principles of the VGS.

The VGS wishes to encourage the people of the Sid Valley in making moves towards a society and economy based on the ideals of 'sustainable development'. "*Sustainable development is development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.*" (Brundtland Report 1987)

b) The VGS principles are

- i) to work sustainably, transparently, and inclusively;
- ii) to respect resource limits;
- iii) to freely share ideas.

c) The only views and opinions of the VGS are those stated on the website.

3) Powers of the VGS

The group, through its Officers only, has the powers to enter into contracts so long as such contracts contain a provision stating that the liability of Officers entering into any contract for the VGS and the liability of any participants in the VGS on whose behalf the contract is made is limited to the assets of the association.

It may also:

- a)** raise funds and apply for, invite, obtain, collect and receive contributions, grants, subscriptions, fees & otherwise;
- b)** employ any paid worker to assist in the attainment of the aims of the group;
- c)** rent or own equipment necessary to achieve the aims;
- d)** affiliate to any local or national group or association that the Officers and Coordination Group decides is appropriate; and disaffiliate from any group or organisation if continued affiliation be, in their view, against the interests of the group;
- e)** do all such other lawful things as shall further the attainment of the aims.

4) Sub-groups

a) The VGS's work is undertaken by sub-groups and individuals who focus on a particular issue for action, research, awareness-raising, participative planning and decision-making, discussion, or other activity which falls under the purpose of the VGS.

b) Although such sub-groups can work autonomously and form their own management structures they are never-the-less integral parts of the Vision Group for

Sidmouth organisation.

Sub-groups provide and receive mutual support and advice through the structure of the VGS, and are covered by VGS insurance as detailed on the website

<https://visionforsidmouth.org/insurance-policy/>

c) Sub-groups may, if they wish, choose to adopt the Constitution of the VGS as their own by making a simple statement containing the following points:

i) Their name;

ii) That they replace section 2 a) with a statement of their own particular Aims;

iii) That every reference to the VGS in this Constitution shall be understood to also apply to the name of their sub-group, saving only those referring to specific inclusions, provisions or arrangements clearly pertaining only to an over-group;

iv) That references to the Coordination Group shall not apply;

Or they may establish their own limited constitution within the broad boundaries of the VGS principles, subject to the approval of the VGS Officers.

d) Sub-groups may affiliate to networks or organisations with similar aims;

e) Sub-groups, including individual members, may not enter into any contracts of any kind which purport to bind the VGS or its Officers, members or subscribers.

5) Membership of the VGS

Anybody in the Sid Valley, or with an interest in Sidmouth, can become a participant in the VGS by adding their name and contact details to the VGS mailing list, and can withdraw by removing their name at any time.

There are no additional membership requirements nor fee for becoming a participant in the VGS.

Participation falls into a range of categories depending on how active you are in the group.

a) Officers. These are elected to deal with the day to day running of the VGS.

b) Coordination Group. Composed of representatives from the various sub-groups within the VGS. Members may also be co-opted to attain a greater balance of viewpoint.

c) Members. Those actively involved in the above mentioned sub-groups.

d) Subscribers. Those who are on the mailing list but not currently actively involved.

The VGS does not endorse any political party or political campaign and is not affiliated to

any sectarian or religious organisation.

No person may hold or stand for political office, or engage in political campaigns, in a role as a Officer or member of the VGS: nor may they claim to represent the views of the VGS unless they are repeating views expressed on the VGS website only. Doing so will result in such an individual being barred/expelled from the VGS.

Participation in the VGS will also be withdrawn from anyone who, by their words or actions, may bring it into disrepute. Anyone who is so disbarred or expelled shall have the right of appeal to a board constituted from the Officers and members of the Coordination Group. These restrictions and consequences apply to sub-groups as well as to individuals.

6) Management

The direction of VGS is determined by the Officers, members and subscribers who take part in any of the formal meetings. The Officers of the VGS are responsible for implementing any decisions about direction, and necessary expenditure, where feasible and taking in to account VGS resources as a whole.

a) The elected Officers of the VGS provide day to day management. They are supported by, but are independent of, the Coordination Group.

A formal General Meeting approves any interim appointment of these Officers, who must be elected on an annual basis at the AGM. Officers may stand for re-election.

The VGS may have the following elected roles:

Chair (normally a rotating position selected from within the Officers or Coordination Group on a short term 'at need' basis but may be a formal elected post if required),

Treasurer,

Secretary,

Publicity Officer,

Webmaster.

These positions may be amalgamated or expanded in response to the workload at any time, as is deemed appropriate. These changed arrangements shall be ratified by a simple majority vote at the next general meeting.

b) The Coordination Group is formed of representatives from all VGS sub-groups. Additional members can be co-opted onto the Coordination Group if agreed by the current members, and will remain as members of the Group until the next Annual General Meeting. These co-opted members may only continue after then as members of the Coordination Group if a simple majority of those present at the AGM vote for them to do so. All members of the Co-ordination Group shall be recorded on the website.

The Coordination Group responsibilities include coordinating VGS projects and activities, and liaison with other organisations.

7) Meetings

Meetings may be held in person or by electronic means, or by any other means deemed appropriate, provided that equality of ability to attend is taken into consideration.

a) Formal meetings

i) Formal meetings of the Officers and Coordination Group will be held at least once a year, in addition to the Annual General Meeting. Other Coordination Group meetings, and Officers meetings, shall be held as necessary and may take place electronically.

ii) At least 7 days notice of a meeting will be given to all participants in the VGS by email newsletter.

iii) If the current elected Officers do not include a Chair and/or Secretary then the Meeting Chairperson and Secretary will be agreed by the Officers and Coordination Group before each formal meeting, it is then their responsibility to organise an agenda and record minutes respectively.

b) Annual General Meeting

i) The Annual General Meeting of the group shall be held once a year. This shall be held not more than fifteen months after the date of the preceding AGM.

ii) The purpose of the Annual General Meeting is to

- receive and adopt the Annual Accounts;
- receive Annual Reports from the Officers and Sub-groups;
- elect the Officers;
- consider any other motion put before the meeting. Motions should (if possible) be notified to the Officers at least 14 days in advance so that they may be placed on the agenda.

c) Special/Emergency General Meetings

i) Special/Emergency General Meetings may be called by the Officers whenever they feel it is necessary for the organisation, and all members will have at least 7 days email notice of the meeting. The notice of the meeting shall give details of the business to be discussed at the meeting.

ii) The secretary shall call a Special General Meeting within 21 days of receiving a written request to do so signed by no less than 30 participants in the VGS. The notice of the meeting shall give details of the business to be discussed at the meeting.

iii) Only the business specified in the notice for the meeting shall be discussed at the Special/Emergency meeting.

d) Rules of proceedings at all meetings

i) The Quorum (the minimum number of attendees needed for a meeting to go ahead) shall number at:

- a general meeting (including the Annual General Meeting) 5 persons, including at least one Officer.
- an Officers and Coordination Group meeting 3 persons including at least one Officer.

ii) All decisions at any meeting shall be reached by consensus or failing that by a more than two-thirds majority; in the event of a tie the Chair shall have a casting vote (a second vote). Should a two-thirds majority not be attained by any side then an email poll of participants shall take place and this poll shall be decided by a simple majority.

iii) Any participant in the VGS may attend and speak at any formal meeting, and may vote at the AGM and in email polls.

e) Minutes from all formal meetings are published on the VGS website and by email

distribution to members; it is accepted that some manual distribution may also be necessary.

8) Resources

VGS resources are administered by the elected Officers, and applied solely to achieve VGS objectives, as agreed from time to time. A simple majority of Officers is required to authorise expenditure.

a) In addition to the Treasurer at least two named signatories to the Bank account shall be provided from within the Coordination Group and/or Officers. Two signatures are needed to authorise any transaction other than an online transaction, only the Treasurer is authorised to carry out online transactions.

b) The Officers and the Coordination Group shall receive regular reports on the finances. Payments from the VGS funds must be notified to them, normally in advance.

c) The VGS Officers in consultation with the Coordination Group will, from time to time, set the maximum emergency payment that may be made for any activity prior to retrospective authorisation.

d) The accounts shall be examined annually by a person other than the Treasurer to see that they are a true record of the transactions.

e) The financial year shall run from 1st June.

f) All non-financial resources shall be held where ever convenient and their whereabouts shall be recorded by the Secretary, or by another Officer if the position of Secretary does not exist at that time. Such resources shall not be relocated without permission of that recording Officer. The list of such resources and their location shall be placed on the VGS website.

9) Constitution

a) Established in 2005 as "The Vision Group for Sidmouth", the VGS adopted a formal constitution in June 2008.

b) The aims and procedures of VGS have and will evolve and be re-articulated from time to time.

c) Amendments to the constitution may be made by a resolution passed by a more than two-thirds majority of those present and voting at the Annual General Meeting or at a General Meeting. Proposed alterations will be circulated to the VGS participants by email newsletter not less than 7 days before the date of that meeting.

10) Closure of the Group

The VGS may be dissolved by a more than two thirds majority voting at a special General Meeting (the dissolving meeting). Any assets remaining after the satisfaction of debts and liabilities shall be transferred to a local not for profit organisation with similar objects, as approved at the dissolving meeting.

11) Adoption and amendment of the Constitution

This revised constitution of the VGS (formally "The Vision Group for Sidmouth") was adopted on7th June 2019.....

at the AGM held atLeigh Browne Room, Dissenter, EX10 8ER ...

The Minutes of this meeting are available on the VGS website.

The need to amend to Constitution was discussed at the meeting of Coordination Group and Officers of the VGS held at 'Dissenter of Sidmouth' on 3rd April 2019. Details of the discussion and agreements are shown in the Minutes of the meeting posted on the VGS website.

Revisions to the above document were made on 7th Feb 2024 to provide clarity in some sections for insurance purposes.